
 
 

PARKS & RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, May 11, 2022 
Parks and Recreation Board Room 

708 W Baseline Road, Suite 4 
Mesa, AZ  85210 

 
PRESENT: Chair Nycole Leyba; Vice-Chair Claud Cluff; Board Members Kimberly Forest; 

Robert Ingram; Jo Martin; Jacob Martinez and Orchidia Peterson 
 
ABSENT: Board Member Troy Campbell  
 
STAFF: Director Andrea Moore, Administrators Brandon Erno and Luis Ruiz, Sr. Fiscal 

Analyst, Tammy Davenport, Management Assistant II, Haylie Smith and Board 
Liaison, Mary Beth Hollmann 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chair Leyba called the meeting to order at 5:07 p.m.  
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

All members present as listed above except excused Board Member Campbell. 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of March 9, 2022. 
 

Chair Leyba called for a motion to approve the March 9, 2022 meeting minutes. There was 
one correction of Administrator Manis’ name in the STAFF section of the minutes. It was 
moved by Board Member Martin and seconded by Board Member Peterson to approve the 
Regular Meeting Minutes of March 9, 2022 as corrected. 
 
Upon tabulation of votes, it showed: 
AYES: Leyba – Cluff – Forest – Ingram – Martin – Maldonado – Martinez – Peterson – 
Romney 
 
NAYES: None 
 
UNAVAILABLE TO VOTE: Forest and Maldonado 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

No members of the public submitted comments.



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2022 
Page 2 

 
5. FY 22/23 BUDGET PRESENTATION 
 
Review the presentation on the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
budget.  
 
Director Moore presented the PRCF Fiscal Year 2022/2023 budget. 
 
Chair Leyba asked why the 21/22 Year End Estimate is higher than the FY 22/23 Proposed 
Budget. Ms. Moore said that the difference has to do with the grants PRCF received for the 
amphitheater.    
 
Ms. Moore discussed that there are two budget adjustments this year to cover the full cost of 
running the ice rink for Merry Main Street. The rink is 1,000 square feet bigger and the cost of 
running the rink went up, although revenue from the rink has also increased over the last three 
years.  
 
Ms. Moore discussed the establishment of a Citywide Special Events Office. Requests for 
events have blossomed and PRCF Special Events only had two people to process all the 
requests and events. She stated that they were trying to staff one to three scheduled events 
every weekend. In addition, there are a large number of special events licenses requested from 
Business Services, requiring a review from PRCF and coordination with other City departments. 
Staff have established categories for these events as City-sponsored, City-supported and 
Private Events. She indicated that they looked at staffing needs and what they could do to 
improve and streamline the special event license, permit, and management process. The result 
is the creation of a new Special Events Office with a total of 9.5 FTE positions. They are hiring 
some staff for positions that are currently budgeted and will hire new positions hopefully 
approved by City Council starting July 1. The process for handling City-sponsored events will 
not change, except that PRCF will take the lead on a few more of them. City-supported and 
Private Events staff will review the permit and license requests, as well as any requests for 
equipment or fee waivers. Staff will lead the effort to coordinate between all reviewing City 
departments to make sure that there is enough parking, trash service, porta potties, and event 
support prior to issuing permits and licenses. They will also work during events to make sure 
approved plans are implemented as intended. 
 
Vice Chair Cluff asked if the Special Events Office will be in PRCF. Ms. Moore said yes, under 
the Commercial Facilities Division.  
 
Board Member Peterson asked if staff is reaching out to other municipalities to brainstorm how 
they run special events. Ms. Moore said that they have pulled other cities’ policies and 
procedures and are using those as a starting point for creating PRCF Special Events 
procedures. Board Member Peterson added that the current Special Events group, just two full 
time people, have done an amazing job and thank you so much.  
 
Board Member Martin said that she has received feedback that the Special Events Office is a 
good idea and hopefully it will make all other departments in the City aware of special events.  
 
Chair Leyba asked when the Special Events Office staff will be up and running and Ms. Moore 
said by this fall. They are hiring a few positions now and the remainder in July. 
 

https://mesa.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=10853761&GUID=2B7C7715-DDB8-4072-82CF-40894DFD3C10
https://mesa.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=10853761&GUID=2B7C7715-DDB8-4072-82CF-40894DFD3C10


Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2022 
Page 3 

 
Regarding the 50% Mesa Recreation Scholarship, Board Member Martinez asked if there was 
any other relief funding for the remaining 50% of registration fees. Ms. Moore said that the 
Making Waves program receives funding from SRP, the Foundation for Mesa Parks and 
Recreation, and other community donors to cover the remaining amount, if qualified, except for 
$5, for swim lessons. She said there are additional City funds on a case-by-case basis to 
provide fee assistance beyond the 50% scholarship for other youth program fees. She said that 
they have found there is more engagement and participation when there is a fee; even when 
most of the cost is covered. Board Member Martinez asked if we advertise all the fee assistance 
that PRCF has and Ms. Moore said yes, Making Waves is advertised. Other fee assistance is 
discussed by recreation center staff on a case-by-case basis by reaching out to families with the 
information.  
 
Related to the special events process with the City, Board Member Martinez asked if anyone 
from PRCF was on the Better Block debrief call related to the Guerrero Rotary Park community 
event and Ms. Moore said yes.  
 
6. MASTER PLAN PRESENTATION AND FINDINGS 

 
Ms. Moore discussed the schedule for the Master Plan. The Plan recommendations will be 
discussed at the July Parks Board meeting. Leading up to the presentation of the 
recommendations, staff, the Board and the community will have time to review findings from the 
community meetings, survey, and GIS analysis when it is published on the 
footprintfuturemesa.com website. She pointed out that a Parks Board meeting on July 13 is 
necessary to discuss the Master Plan recommendations. After that meeting, the master plan will 
be presented to City Council in September. This plan will eventually be incorporated into the 
City’s General Plan, which will go to ballot for voter approval in November 2024. 
 
Teresa Jackson and Dave Peterson, Senior Consultants at BerryDunn presented an overview of 
the Parks, Recreation and Community Facilities Comprehensive Master Plan findings from all 
the community meetings. Ms. Jackson stated that they wanted to give more than just 
recommendations; that they needed another touch point of current conditions and what those 
findings are.  She said that the plan is comprehensive and for 20 years, thus a tool for the 
department future planning and implementation. It is a way to look more broadly to continue the 
service PRCF has as well as address any gaps in service.  
 
Chair Leyba asked if the recreation needs, and priorities are represented in all 6 Districts and if 
she could indicate what districts had the most participation. She said she was under the 
impression that Districts 2 and 5 had lower participation. Ms. Jackson said that there was a 
variation in attendance at district meetings due to a COVID spike.  She said that attendance in 
the first week was less than in the second. She said that the meeting at the Brimhall Aquatics 
Complex – District 2 – had the least attendance. She added that the community meetings 
helped shape the questions that were included on the community survey. The data is 
statistically valid for breaking it down into three sub areas for Mesa.   
Board Member Martinez asked if there were differences in what the community was saying in 
each district. Ms. Jackson said yes, and the full data finding is found on the Future for the 
Footprint website. In some districts there is a need for more facilities, while in others it’s the 
theme of taking care of what we have. 
  



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2022 
Page 4 

 
Board Member Martin asked about the three sub areas were for the survey. Ms. Jackson said 
that they used major thoroughfares. Ms. Moore said the areas were: 

• North of the US 60 West of Greenfield 
• North of the US 60 East of Greenfield 
• South of the US 60 in the southeast part of Mesa 

 
Board Member Martinez asked if that third subarea was the Eastmark area and Ms. Moore said 
yes. 
 
Board Member Martin mentioned that care needs to be exercised to not let the Eastmark and 
southeast Mesa communities drive the needs for the rest of Mesa. This was raised as a 
consideration during the redistricting work for the updated Council districts. Ms. Jackson added 
that the north and west communities were more focused on taking care of what we have, 
whereas the southeast was a need for more facilities.   
 
Chair Leyba asked where more details on the data could be found, and Ms. Jackson said the 
Footprint for Future site. 
 
Board Member Ingram asked if the comments would change if there was a larger group at the 
in-person meetings or if it would be about the same. Ms. Jackson said that she thinks it would 
be the same, as the same messaging came through from the meetings and surveys as far as 
needs and priorities. For example: purchase land to preserve open space, new walking/biking 
trails, less dog parks, sports fields, and skate parks. 
 
Chair Leyba asked if the 55% of respondents supporting new bond programs came from the 
mailed-out survey and Ms. Jackson said yes.  
  
Dave Peterson presented the second half of the report, which dealt with Inventory and Level of 
Service. 
 
Board Member Martinez asked if the trailheads are the responsibility of the Transportation 
Department. Ms. Moore said that the canal trails are the responsibility of Transportation and the 
ramadas and benches near the trails are typically in the parks but there isn’t signage that 
indicates trailheads there. 
   
Board Member Martinez asked about how turf reduction is implemented. Mr. Peterson said that 
they propose that as irrigation components are replaced, turf be removed at the same time. Ms. 
Moore said that reducing turf focuses on keeping turf where recreation happens and not having 
turf for decorative reasons.  
  
Board Member Ingram asked what percentage of turf uses reclaimed water. Ms. Moore said that 
the City does not use reclaimed water for irrigation– the City’s reclaimed water goes through 
recharge systems into the aquifers. Some parks are irrigated with untreated canal water.  
 
Board Member Martinez asked how this plan affects global warming. Ms. Moore said that the 
City of Mesa has a climate action plan  that includes reducing the carbon footprint and 
increasing tree canopies. Board Member Ingram asked if there was the possibility of the 
legislature mandating the use of water. Ms. Moore said she can’t speak for the legislature; 
however, the City has irrigation controllers that are tied to eight weather stations so the irrigation 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2022 
Page 5 

 
system can adjust accordingly. Board Member Ingram asked if Parks and Recreation uses 
artificial turf and Ms. Moore said no, it gets too hot in our climate, so we do not use it.  
 
Board Member Martinez asked how this plan factors in schools when you look at walkable 
access. Mr. Peterson said that they look at access to schools for recreation, but these days 
schools are typically campus based and are less available for walkable access to recreation. He 
said that there can be discussion on how Parks and Recreation can encourage involvement with 
schools.  
 
Board Member Forrest asked if they analyzed the demographics where some recreation 
services may not be used based on resident age or amenities in retirement communities.  Mr. 
Peterson said that they do take that into consideration when doing their analysis.  
 
Board Member Ingram asked if one of the barriers to expansion of services is a lack of 
ownership of land by the City of Mesa.  Mr. Peterson said yes, but they will be including 
suggestions for solutions to adding more recreation access.  
 
Ms. Jackson gave the next steps for the plan. They will come back in July with action items for 
the Board to consider and act upon. Then the recommendation from the Board will be presented 
by Ms. Jackson at City Council in September where they will ask the City Council to adopt the 
plan. 
 
Board Member Maldonado asked if BerryDunn, when looking for existing alternative or private 
recreation providers, looked at indoor playground areas. Mr. Peterson said no, nor did they look 
at gated communities. 
 
Chair Leyba asked when BerryDunn returns in July will the action items be based on the in-
person meetings and mailed out survey. Ms. Jackson said yes, as well as the areas on the map 
showing as being underserved. Mr. Peterson said that they try to meld all the information 
together to focus on and improve what Parks and Recreation has to offer. 
  
Board Member Martin said that she had some concerns over the division of the City in three 
parts and the perception that one entire part only includes District 6. Ms. Moore said that the 
survey was based on land area and balancing population distribution, not political 
districts. Board Member Martin suggested that Ms. Jackson spend time in the statistical analysis 
explaining the basis for the boundaries of the three sections of the City. 
  
7. DIVISION UPDATES – PLANNING AND OPERATIONS, RECREATION, AND 

COMMERCIAL FACILITIES – LUIS RUIZ, BRANDON ERNO, AND ROGER SINGLETON 
 
Commercial Operations 
 
Luis Ruiz, Commercial Facilities Administrator, provided an overview of the highlights for 
Commercial Facilities. 
 
Amphitheatre 
 

• Presented a short video of one of the five trees that needed to be cut down, that was 
carved into a guitar. Mr. Ruiz said that they hope to have two more trees carved next 
year.  



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2022 
Page 6 

 
• Presented a video of a concert at the Amphitheatre and a list of the upcoming concerts 

from May of this year to March of 2023. 
 
Convention Center  
 

• Discussed the upcoming anime convention 
 
Planning and Operations 
 
Brandon Erno, Park Planning and Operations Administrator provided information on current 
development projects.  
 

• Lehi Sports Park 
o Project Components 

 5 New Multi-Purpose Fields 
 1 New Restroom Facility 
 Awarded SRPMIC Grant - $90,000 

o Construction Costs - $15.6 M 
o Estimated Construction Schedule 

 Project Completion -  Fall 2022 
 Tentative Opening – Mid November 2022 

 
• Red Mountain Park Expansion 

o Project Components 
o 10 New Multi-Purpose Fields 
o 4 New Baseball/Softball Fields 
o 2 New Restroom Facilities 
o Relocation of Disc Golf Course 

 18-hole north and south courses 
o Maintain Equestrian Uses 
o Estimated Construction Costs 

 GMP No. 1  $2.8 M 
 Early site grading 
 Water source connection during treatment plant dry-up 
 GMP No. 2 (future) $27.3 M 
 Total $30.1 M 

o Estimated Construction Schedule 
 Project Start - March 2022 
 Project Completion - Spring 2024 

 
• Monterey Park Expansion 

o Estimated Costs 
 Construction Cost      $13.8 M 
 GMP No. 1  $8.9 M 
 GMP No. 2  $4.9 M 
 Total Project Cost  $16.5 M 
 2018 Bond Estimate  $12.3 M 

o Estimated Schedule 
 Project Start- June 2022 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2022 
Page 7 

 
 Project Completion – June 2023 

o Construction Phasing 
 GMP No. 1 – Grading, Utilities, Landscape and Irrigation, Hardscapes, 

Fencing 
 GMP No. 2 – Buildings, Pickleball Courts, Paving, Playground, Site 

Furnishings 
 

• Eastmark Great Park Phase IV 
o Project Components 

 2-5 & 5-12 Playground 
 Restrooms 
 Urban Fishing Lake 
 Ramadas 
 Passive Recreation Space 
 24 Acres of new park space  

o Construction Costs - 8.7M 
o Estimated Construction Schedule 

 Project Completion - Fall 2022 
 Tentative Ribbon Cutting: Postponed until Fall 

 
• City Center Plaza 

o Project Components 
 Water Feature/Splash Pad 
 Ice Rink for Merry Main 
 Restrooms 
 Passive Recreation Space 

o Construction Costs - 8.5M 
o Estimated Construction Schedule 

 Project Completion - June 2022 
 Potential Ribbon Cutting - Fall 2022 

 
Recreation 
 
Roger Singleton, Recreation Supervisor provided overview of the highlights for all the recreation 
programs as Recreation Administrator, Aimee Manis is on vacation. 
 

• The Aquatics teams is busy preparing to open the pools during Memorial Day weekend 
with May 28 being opening day.  Discount membership passes are available now and 
the sale will end on May 27. 

• The Athletics team and Visit Mesa are hosting the Western Athletic Conference baseball 
tournament at Hohokam Stadium May 24 to 28.  You can purchase game ticket for $15 
or a tournament general pass for $40 through Visit Mesa and Eventbrite.com 

• Planning is underway for a short closure of the Red Mountain Walking track and fitness 
floor this year in August.  The track surfaced will be replaced and new flooring will be 
installed under the weights and machines. 

• The Webster Recreation Center will also receive a new gym floor over the summer.  It is 
being installed by NPS 

• An Adaptive Fashion Show will be held on May 14 at the Chandler Center for the Arts. 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2022 
Page 8 

 
• The AZDS Desert Challenge Games will happen May 18 to 22 at Mesa Community 

College for track and field, the Broadway Recreation Cent for air rifle and Kino Aquatic 
Center for swimming.  This event brings in Paralympic athletes from all over the world.  
Admission is free and all are welcome to see these amazing athletes. Opening 
Ceremonies will be on Friday May 2nd, at 6:00 PM at the MCC track. 

 
8. DIRECTOR’S UPDATE – ANDREA MOORE 

 
Director Moore indicated that she didn’t have any new updates other than the budget 
presentation and Master Plan findings. 
 
9. REPORTS OF MEETINGS OR EVENTS ATTENDED 
 
Chair Leyba said some words for Board Member Martin as this is her last meeting on the board.  
Chair Leyba said that Board Member Martin was very caring about all of our Mesa residents, not 
just those in her district. She said that Ms. Martin was the person who planted the seed for her 
to get involved in the board and community. She said that Ms. Martin is always there to support 
Parks and Recreation and thanked her for her contributions to the board and the Mesa 
community.  
 
Board Member Martin said that being on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was a great 
experience and she is so glad that Councilmember Thompson asked her to apply for the board. 
She said that being on the board opened a lot of opportunities to help the community. Thank 
you.   
 
Board Member Martinez discussed his attendance at the Better Block event and felt that people 
who attended were excited to do community events. He said that he is doing a lot within the 
schools and encouraged everyone to get involved.     
 
Board member Peterson said that she attended Celebrate Mesa with her family, and it was a 
great event to spend time talking to the community. She said her daughter and husband 
attended the Pinball/Arcade conference at the Convention Center and loved it. She thanked all 
those involved in making it a great event.   
 
Board Member Maldonado said that he volunteered at Celebrate Mesa in the Foundation booth 
selling wrist bands and water and the feedback he got was that everyone enjoyed the event.   
 
Board Member Cluff said that he volunteered in the morning and afternoon selling wrist bands 
and water. He said that the event was very laid back and with no entrance people could flow in 
and out.  
 
Board Member Ingram said he also volunteered at Celebrate Mesa and one of the great things 
was the passports at Eco Village. As kids got stamps visiting booths at the event, Eco Village 
would give out free things and with the entire passport stamped a free ride bracelet.  
Chair Leyba said she was interviewed by a podcaster, and she mentioned Board Member 
Martin and her work for the community. In March she attended Coffee with a Cop at Red 
Mountain. She also went to speak at a women’s book club at New Beginnings church about 
being involved in City government. She said she saw a game at Hohokam, and it was great. 
She went to Cycle Mesa and attended the Law Enforcement Car Show at MCC, which she 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2022 
Page 9 

 
thought was really cool. She said that at the last We Run Mesa run, many community members 
were there, and Katie Paul and Aaron Garcia were recognized in front of the Mayor. She said 
that they did a great job.   
 
10. NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting will be held on July 13, 2022. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT   
 
Chair Leyba asked if there were any other items for discussion; the Board had no additional 
comments or discussion. Chair Leyba called for a motion to adjourn. It was moved by Board 
Member Martinez and seconded by Board Member Martin to adjourn. 
 
Upon tabulation of votes, it showed: 
 
AYES – Cluff – Forest – Ingram – Leyba – Maldonado – Martin – Martinez – Peterson  
NAYS – None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Andrea Moore, Director, CPRE 
PRCF Department Director 
 


